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Neal Devlin, Esquire
Knox, McLaughlin, Gornall &Sennett, P.C.
120 West Tenth Street
Erie, PA 16501-1461

Re: Notice of Violation of Consent Decree, United States v. Robert Brace, et al., Civ.
Action No. 90-229 (W.D. Pa.)

Dear Mr. Devlin:

This letter serves as written notice that your clients, Robert Brace and Robert Brace Farms, Inc.,
Defendants in the above referenced action, are in violation of the September 23, 1996 Consent
Decree ("CD") and of Sections 301 and 404 of the Clean Water Act ("CWA"), 33 U.S.C. §§
1311 and 1344. The CD is attached here as E~ibit 1.

As discussed in detail below, Defendants' violations include the discharge of dredged and fill
material into approximately 18 acres of wetlands that were required to be restored under the CD.
As a result of the violations, described below, Defendants are liable to the United States for
stipulated and/or statutory penalties, as well as injunctive relief, including restoration of the
property.

Background

On October 4, 1990, the United States filed a complaint against Robert Brace and Robert Brace
Farms, Inc. for violations of CWA Sections 301 and 404, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311 and 1344, for the
unpermitted discharge of pollutants by dredging, filling, leveling and draining waters of the
United States, specifically 30 acres of wetlands adjacent to Elk Creek. After trial, on December
22, 1993, the United States District Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania entered
judgment on behalf of the Defendants finding that Defendants' activities were exempt from the
permitting requirements under CWA Section 404, 33 U.S.C. § 1344. On November 22, 1994,
the Third Circuit Court of Appeals reversed the District Court's decision, found that the
agricultural exemption did not apply to Defendants' activities, held that Defendants were liable
for CWA violations, and remanded the case to the District Court to assess penalties. See United
States v. Brace, 41 F.3d 117, 120 (3d Cir. 1994). The United States Supreme Court denied
Defendants' petition for certiorari. Thereafter, on September 23, 1996, the parties entered into
the CD to resolve Defendants' liability.



The Consent Decree

The CD permanently enjoins Defendants from discharging any pollutants (including by the
dredging, filling, leveling and draining of waters) within the approximately 30-acre wetland site
at issue in the action, unless such discharge is in compliance with the CWA. The CD also
requires that Defendants: (1) restore the wetlands in accordance with a restoration plan attached
to the CD; (2) pay a $10,000 civil penalty; and (3) record the CD with the applicable lands
office. If Defendants fail to comply with those requirements, the parties stipulated to a $250
penalty per day for each day of Defendants' failure. The CD also makes Defendants responsible
for any expenses and costs incurred by the United States in enforcing the CD. The CD remains
in effect.

Violations of the Consent Decree

By letter dated August 29, 2013 (attached here as Exhibit 2), the United States Environmental
Protection Agency ("EPA") and the United States Army Corps of Engineers ("USAGE") notified
Defendants of potential CWA and CD violations associated with the conversion of wetlands to
agricultural land and with sediment removal activities in tributary channels within the 30-acre
wetland site covered by the CD. Defendants were advised that EPA and the USAGE were
aware that some of the sediment removal in the area, in violation of the CWA and CD, had
already occurred at the time of a July 2012 inspection, and that any additional work involving a
discharge of dredged or fill material within the area would require a Department of the Army
Permit.

As you know, on May 20, 2015, we, along with representatives from the EPA, USAGE,
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection ("PADEP"), Pennsylvania Fish and Boat
Commission ("PAFBC"), the Brace family, and a consultant on behalf of the Brace family, met
at the Brace property and visited the area subject to the CD. During that site visit, EPA
confirmed the discharge of dredged and/or fill material into approximately 18 acres of wetlands
within the 30-acre wetland site covered by the CD. These wetlands had been cleared, drained,
plowed and planted. Ten drain outlets were observed in and along the channel of Elk Creek and
its associated unnamed tributaries, all within the limits of the 30-acre wetland site covered by the
CD. Additionally, a check dam required under the CD (see Exhibit 1, Consent Decree at Exhibit
A) was removed from Elk Creek and an unauthorized earthen crossing was observed in Elk
Creek. These actions violate CWA Section 301 and the permanent injunction set forth in the
CD, and have effectively reversed the restoration required by the CD.

After the site visit, EPA received and reviewed a copy of the August 5, 2015 "Wetland
Evaluation Report, Homestead, Murphy, and Marsh Farms, Waterford Borough, Erie County,
Pennsylvania" prepared by EcoStrategies, Civil Engineering, PLLC, on behalf of Robert Brace
& Sons, Inc. ("Report"). The stated "goal" of the Report is "to provide an understanding of the
property, and land use history, explain the agricultural exemption and describe the past and
present conditions of the hydrology and wetlands on the property." Report at 1. The Report
requests that EPA allow Mr. Brace to continue to pursue his original farming goals. Id. at 4.
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The EPA will not agree to such a request because doing so: (1) would ignore the Third Circuit
Court of Appeals' decision finding that the agricultural exemption did not apply to Mr. Brace's
property, see United States v. Brace, 41 F.3d 117, 127-28 (3d Cir. 1994); (2) would contravene
the CD, as discussed above; and (3) would not be consistent with the objectives of the CWA.

Please be advised that the United States is within its rights to seek stipulated penalties and/or
statutory penalties for the CWA and CD violations described above, as well as to enforce the CD
to require Defendants to restore and/or mitigate the damages caused by their unlawful actions,
and to seek any additional relief available. Moreover, to the extent the United States seeks to
enforce the CD, Defendants are liable to the United States for costs associated therewith.

The United States is willing to meet with you and your clients to discuss the CD and CWA
violations described in this letter. If you would like to arrange for either an in-person or
telephonic meeting, please contact me at your earliest convenience to schedule such a meeting.

Sincerely,

,aura J. Brown
Trial Attorn
U.S. Departure of Justice
Environment and Natural Resources Division
Environmental Defense Section
(202) 514-3376
Laura. j . s.brown@usdo j . gov

cc: Pam Lazos, Esq., U.S. EPA, Region III

Attachments
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IN TOTE YJNY1'ED STATES A~STRICT COURT'
FOR THE WESTERN bTSTR~CT ~OF PENNSYLV,AN~,

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )

Plaintiff, }
}

V. }
}

ROBERT BRACE and ROBERT BRACE )
FARMS,.INC., a Pennsylvania )
Corporation, )

Defendants.

Civil Action No. 90-229
Erie

CnNSE~iT DECREE

W~-IE1~AS PlaintiffUnited States of America, in its Complaint, alleged that

De#'endants committed violations of the Clean Water Act ("CWA"), including the

unpermitted discharge of pollutants by dredging, filling, leveling, and braining cf w,t~:~

of the United States, specifically a wetlands of approximately ;iQ acres that is adjacent to

Elk Creek, and Plaintiff sought injunctive relief auld civil penalties;

Vi~E~REAS the United States District Court for the Western District of

Pennsylvania after trial dismissed the Complaint on December 22, 1993, holding that

Defendants` activities were exempt from permitting requireme»ts under Section 404 of

the CWA;

WHEREAS the Third Circuit Court of Appeals, on November 22, 1994, reversed

the District Court and ruled that Defendants are liable for the asserted violations, and
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remanded the matter to the District Court for remedial measures, and the United States

Supreme Court denied Defendants' petition for writ of certiorari; and

WHEREAS the parties have agreed to this Consent Decree;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby ORDERED, ADNDGED, and DECREED that:

~~

1. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to CWA Section 309,

33 U.S.C. § 1319, and 28 U.S.C. § ~ 1331, 1345, an,d 1355.

2, This Consent Decree is fair, reasonable, in the public interest, and in

accordance with the CWA.

3. Defendants, their officers, directors, agents, servants, employees,

successors, assigns, and those in acrive concert or participation with them are enjoined

permanently from discharging any pollutants (including dredged or fill material) into the

approximately 3Q acre wetland site depicted on Attachment A, unless such discharge is'in

compliance with the CWA.
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4. Defendanu will perform restoration in accordance with the wetlands

restoration plan, which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof.

S'IVIL PENALTY

5, Within thirty days after the entry of this Consent Decree, Defendanss will

pay a civil penalty of $10,000 by cashier's or certified check payable to the Treasurer of

the United States and deli'~ered to David M. Thompson of the YJ. S: Dcpartrnent of

Justice. If said payment is not made within said period, then interest will be charged in

accordance with the statutory judgment interest rate, as provided in 28 U.S.C. § 1961,

from the time payment is due until the time payment is made.

OT E~ PROVISIONS

6. Within thirty days after the entry of this Consent Decree, Defendants will

record this Consent Decree in the applicable land records office.

lQ 004/011

7. Until all requirements in paragraphs 4, 5, and 6 have been perfonn~d and at

least thirty days prior to any proposed transfer of any interest in any part of the property

affected by this Consent Decree, Defendants will provide a true copy of this Consent

Decz~ee to any proposed transferee and simultaneously will notify the United States of any

proposed transfer. A transfer of interest in the said property will not relieve Defendants

of any responsibility in this Consent Decree, unless the United States, Defendants, and the

transferee agree to allow the transferee to assume such responsibility.

3
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' 8. Each party will bear its own exptnses and costs to the time of the entry of

this Consent Decree. Thereafter, if Defendants fail to perfomn any requirement in

paragraph 4, 5, and 6, then, upon receipt of written notice of such failure from Plaintiff,

Defendants vwill pay a stipulated penalty of $250 for each day of failure, by cashier's or

certified check payable to the Treasurer of the United States and delivered to David M.

Thompson of the U. S. Department of Justice_ Additionally, Defendants will be

responsible for any expenses and costs incuz~red by the United States in enforcing this

Consent Decree.

4. In adclition to any other legal authority, representatives of the United States

will have the authority for a period of eighteen (18) months ai~er the entry of this Consent

Decree, at reasonable times and with proper identification, to enter upon the pr~peTty

affected by this Consent Decree for the purposes o~'monitoring and measuring

compliance with this Consent Decree.

10. This Consent Decree constitutes a complete settlement of any and alL claims

by any of the parties that arise from the Complaint through the date of the entry of this

Consent Decree. The United States does not waive any rights or remedies available to ~t

for azry violations by Defendants of laws, relations, rules, aad pemuts other than the

violations alleged an the Complaint, and this Oonsent Decree does not relieve Defendants

o~responsibility to comply with any federal, state, and local laws, regulations, rotes, and

permits, except that this Consent Decree provides alI necessary federal authority to

implement pazagraph 4. Defendants ~o not waive ;any rights or remedies availai~e to

4
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them under any applicable law againstrthe Plaintiffwhich ma}• arise after the date of the

entry of this Consent Decree.

Z 1. Defendants consent to the entry of this Conscnt Decree without further

notice. the parties acknowledgc that after the lodging and before the entry of this

Consent Decree, final approval by the United States is subject to the requirements of 28
0

C.F.R. §50.7, which provides for public notice and comment. The United States resexves

the right to withhold or withdraw its consent to the entry of this Consent Decree based

upon such public comment.

12. Upon approval and entry by this Court, this Consent Decree will have the

effect and force of a final judgment_ This Court will retain jurisdiction over this action

for the purposes of enforcing; interpzeting, and modifying this Consent Decree. The

United States reserves all Iegal and equitable remedies available to enforce the provisions

of this Consent Decree. Any stipulated, modification of this Consent Decree must be in

wrSfiing, signed by the parties, and approved by this Court.

5
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DATED: L e~.

UNITED STATE I TRICT JUDGE

DATED: Z3 1qQ b

-LOIS J. SC FFER
Assistant Attorney Geiicral
Environment ~ Natural Resources Division

By. ~ cw.cQ ~ _ ~
DAVID M. ~-iOMPSON, T ~ Attorney
U_ S_ 17epartment of h~stice
Environment & Natura Resources Division
Environmental Defense Section
Room 7120
Washington, D. C. 2Q53Q
Telephone. (202) S l 4 -2617

Attorneys for the United States

DATE: Z S/ q 4 6

HFNRY
Buchanan Ingersoll Professional Corporation
One Oxfotd Centre
3b1 Grant Street, 20th Fluor
Pittsburgh', PA 15219-1410,
Telephone: (4l2) 562-1695

Attorneys for Defenc3.mts
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August 29, 2013

kJNlTED ~TA7ES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION Iil

X860 Arch Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029

Robert Brace
Robert Brace c~ Sons, Inc.
1131 Route 97
P.O. Box 338
Waterford, PA 16441

RE: Applicability of Clean V~Iater Apt, Section 4040 Exemptions at Brace Farms

Dear Mr. Brace:

This letter is a joint response from the US Environmental Protection Agency, Region 3 (~;PA),
and the US Army Corps of Engineers, Pittsburgh District (Corps), to your January 17, 2013
submittal and the subsequent June 27, 2013 site visit to your property in Waterford and McKean
Townships, Erie Count3Y, Pennsylvania. The joint EPA-Corps site visit was conducted in
response to your request for review of the applicability of the Section 4040 "agriculhual
exemption" to the Clean Water Act, 33 UeS.C. §§ 1251, 13440, to activities you performed in
aquaxic resources located on your properties depicted on Enclosure 1.

The EPA has determined, and the Corps concurs, that the majority of work you or Robert Brace
& Sons, Inc. (RB&S) performed in waters of the United States was performed without the
required Department of the Army permits, and that those activities are not exempt from
regulation under Section 404(fl of the 'lean Water Act. Asite-specific analysis of the work
performed and the waters affected is described more specifically herein. In summary, your
unauthorized activities as of June 27, 20 i 3 are:

• discharge of dredged and/or fill material by dredging of Elk Creek and its tributaries;
conversion of wetlands on the former Mazsh property through draining, ditching, and
side-casting; installation of the drains; and

~ channel alterations and wetland conversion within the 30-acre wetland site subject to the
1996 Consent Decree.

Subject Pr~perti~s

The properties subject to this Iet~er which w~r~ impacted by you and/or RB&S are located in
V~Iaterf~ord and McKean Townships, Erie County, Pennsylvania and include tax parcel IDs 31-



016-063.0-001.00, 31-016-063.4-002.00, 47-011-004.0-002.00, 47-012-028.0-QO 1.00, and 47-
Oi 1-004.0-0O~.OQ, and are located witYun the Elk Creek Watershed.

~,nclosure 1 identifies tie approximate location of property i~~uncia~ies, Elk Creek and i
tributaries, and the approximate location of the boundaries of the 1996 Consent Decree's 30-acre
wetla~ud site desc~i'ued bziv~. Enci~surG 1 was compiled wing maiti~ie ;~;,tlan~ and ~rsappin~
resources, is intended for illuskrative purposes only, and does not represent survey-level
accuracy.

federal Jurisdiction and Statutory Background

The EPA and the Corps have concurrent ju~risdicc4:iion under the Clean Water Act to re~u~ate
waters of the United States. The term "waters of the Unites States" is based on the definitions
and linuts of ji;risdiction rcfn~tai.~eci in 33 CSR 328 aid. pertin~t case la~v.:'~a~~iga'~le }eaters,
their tributaries, and surrounding wetlands aze waters of the United States.

'The EPA has the ultimate authority for determining federal jurisdiction and iaterpret~ng the
scope of exemptions under Section 404(fj of the Clean V~Iater Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1341~~. Section
404(fl(1)(C) provides in }~rtinent part, that "...the discharge of dredged or fill ~raaterial...for the
purpose of... the maintenance of drainage ditches'... is not prohibited by or otherwise subject to
regulation under this section... " However, in order for a~ activity qualifying for the exemption
to retain the exemption, it must avoid recaptuzs under Section 404(fl(2). If an otherv~ise exempt
activity "bring[s] an area of'the navigable waters into a use to which it was not previously
subject, where the flow or circulation of navigable waters may be impaired or the reach of such
waters be reduced " it is recaptured, subject to regulation under the Clean Water Act, and a
Department of the Army Permit is required. It is important to point out that, both historically
and presently, the conversion of jurisdictional waters to agriculture is not exemp# from the Act.

Litigation

In 1996, a Consent Decree was entered in the matter of US v. Robert Brace and Robert Bzace
Farms (Civil Action No. 90-229) (Consent Decree), concluding US v. Brace, 41 F.3d 117 (3d.
Cir. 1994) cert. denied, 515 ti S 1158 (1995) following remand. The Consent Decree
memoriaiixed the Court of Appeals far the Third Circuit's folding t~:at 3To~.u° acti~ri~.es at Parcel
No. 47-012-02$.x-~?~J1.11, inchtciing the dredging, fi 11~"~.g, l~v~ling, anal gaining of waters of the
United States, in appro~mately 30-acres of wetlands adjacent to Elk Creek, were violations of
the Clean Water pct, and r~c~uired a Department of Army permit. T'hE Consent Decree
pe~nars~ntly enjoins ys~u from clischarging pollutants by c3~redging, fillzng, leveling and dr~,iring
s~f watery, within the approximately 30~acre wetland szte, which in~lutl~s gor~ion~ of Elk ~r~~ei~,
c~t:l~s~ s~cli ~iseii.~,:~~ is it ci,~~lia~c~ :~~~ #fie ~1~~ ~„'at~~ pct. ~~ ~~~s€;at P.ecz~~ i~
yr.~.s~, siQi~ a.Cu' £+9'~fỳj~Si,iTP 7e

The Third Circuit voted that 3~ our activ7ties did nflt ;,o~stit~x~e "nornzal fanning activi~„ exempt
from the Clean Water Apt under Section 404(~j(1)(Al. The court's determination that portions of
Parcel No. 47-012-028.0-001.00 were not part of an on-going farming opera$ion for purposes of

2



Section 404(~(1)(A), is illustrative to whether an activity on the same site is subjec# to recapture
under Section 4040(2) far purposes of applying the Section 404(fl(1)(C) exemption.

In 2006, you filed a lawsuit against the United States alleging that application of the Consent
Decree was a taking of your property without just compensation under the Fifth Amendment of
the Constitution of the United States. The Court of Federal Claims held that application of
wetlands regulations through the Consent Decree did not constitute a regulatory or a physical
taking, and that flooding following wetlands restoration required by the Consent Decree did not
constitute a physical taking {Brace v. US, 72 Fed. Cl. 337 (2006. The Consent Decree remains
in effect for Parcel No. 47-012-028.0-001.00.

Description of Activities

In September 2011, you contacted the Corps and the EPA regarding your proposal to remove
beaver Balms, which you believed were impacting agricultural drainage systems, in areas adjacent
to your active agricultural lands. You were iaformed that the Corps and the EPA do not regulate
beaver dam removal provided there is no discharge of fill material, and were directed to contact
the Pennsylvania Game Commission for more information.

Also in September 20i 1, the EPA conducted a site visit and informed you that the reach of
Agricultural Ditch A (identified on Enclosure 1), previously excavated within uplands, north of
Lane Road on Parcel No. 47-011-004.Q-002, could be maintained under the Section 404(fl(1)(c)
exemption from the Clean Water Act. However, the EPA emphasized t~.at all activities in waters
of the United States south Qf Lane Road would require a Clean ̀1Vater Act pernut prior to the
initiating activities.

On May 30, 2012 you notified us by e-mail that the beaver dams were removed and requested a
site visit to review site conditions. On July 24, 2012 a j oint site visit was conducted by EPA and
the Corps. During the site visit, staff represented that the removal of sediment from Elk Creek
and its tributaries south of Lane Road. was exempt from regulation under the Clean V~Iater Act.
At this site visit, the channels were laden with sediment, from adjacent agricultural activities, and
t1~e boundaries Qf the Consent Decree wire not clearly identified. Subsequent to the site visit,
Ms. Rhonda McAtee requested by email dated July 31, 2012 that approximately 0.9 miles of
channel from Sharp Road, under Lane Road, and extending to Crreenlee Road be labeled as
operating under the farming exemptions. No map, drawing, delineation or pernut application
was ever submitted.

Upon further consideration and review, the government's field determination was made in error;
the reaches of Elk Creek and its tributaries on your property are not agricultural ditches.
Additionally, portions of these channels are within the 30-acre wetland site covered by the 1996
Consent Decree. Because your performance of the sediment removal relied on information
erroneously provided by the Go~rernment, we will exercise our enforcement discretion and
forego any further action regarding the sediment removal activities already completed in Elk
Creek at this location. Please note that any future work involving a discharge of dredge or fill
material within this area requires a Department of the Army Permit. While we recognize that
historically modifications hive been made to EIk Creek and its tributaries, those modifications



do not convert that jvater~ourse into an agricultural ditch and thus, main#ena:ace activities
performed in the reaches of Eik Creek and its tributaries within the subject properties are not
exemp# from regulation under Section 4040 of the Clean Water Act.

It also appears that portio~is of the area subject to the Consent Decrse may have been converted
to agricultural use, and a tributary to Elk Creek may bare h:,en filled and ~er3ute~. ~
Departmern of the Army pernut was not issued for these activities, and they are no# exempt from
regulation under Section 404~~}. These ~ctiviti~s were not discuss~~ nor ~ukhorized d~.ring the
July 24, 2012 site visit. Because the extent of these activities was not investigated during the
June 2~, 20 i 3 si#e visit, they tivill require further r~vievv and investigation to det$rm3n.e if a
violation of the Clean Water Act or the Consent D~caee has occunr~d..

The dredging of Elk Creek and its tributaries and the side-casting of material on Parcels Nos. 47-
O l 1-044.0-003.00, 31-015-063.0-002.00, and 31-016-063.0-001.00, north of Lane Road to Sharp
Road, were performed without the required Depaztment of the Army pernvt, and are not exempt
fxoan regulation under S~ctxon 404(fj. These activities were not discussed or authorized during
the July 24, 2012 site visit, however they were included in the 0.9 miles of channel referenced in
the July 31, 2012 email. While this reach may have been previously impac#ed by some
agricultural activities, it r~m~ins a jairisdictional water and not an agricultural ditch eligible for
the Section 404(fl exemption. Therefore, the work performed constitutes a violation of the Clean
Water Act.

Activities including clearing, grubbing, side-casting, and installing drain tiles within wetlands
adjacent to Elk Creek, on Parcel l~ios. 31-016-063.0-001.00, 31-016-063.0-002.00, and 47-011-
004.0-003.00, occurred in ata a~a constituting approximately 24-acres of wetlands. These
activities were performed without the required Department of the Army permit, are not exempt
from regulation under Section 4040, and constitute a violation of the Clean Water Act. These
activities were not discussesi or authorized during *,fie July 24, 201,2 site visit and the work
performed constitutes a violation of the Clean Water Act.

Summary

~,t this time, you are in violation of the Clean Water Act. 1~Ta further ~vark in waters should b~
c~ndurt~d witho~t~the ~vri~tten approval cf the ~mrg~~ an~i/~r the EPA. j?~I~ rscomm~.d that
you hire ~ qualified v~,7etlands consultant tQ identify the specific boundaries of all waters located
o~ your properties and submit that information to the Corps and the SPA for approval.

The EPA has ~h~ lead on #his enf~rc~rnent action and is r~vi~wix~g its enforcement options to
address your ~nauth~rr~zed activiries. We recflmanend that you ~cantact fir, Tc~dc~ t.utt~, EPA
~~euaatis jean ~:~~~r, a~ (2i5) ~l$-~Onn C;. lu~#y,to~'~'~~Y~.gosT s3~ ~n 45 days ~f rP:ei~i ~f
~,ic ~~~r~~ t~, ~;s~,z~c ~,~c~ih~P ~p~i~,ns ~~, r~stc~rs and remediate the Section 404 violations. While
we are coordin~.ting .our actions with the Pennsylvania i~ep~'tment of Envi~cnm~ntal Prctectis~n
and the Pennsylvania Fish and Boat ~omrnission, these agencies may purs~a~ actions pursuan~ to
stag regulations and authorities.



We trust that this letter clarifies any outstanding issues with regard to activities taken as of
June 27, 2013 an the Brace Farm properties. if you have any additional questions, please contact
Mr. Lutte at the EPA or Mr. Michael Fodse, Corps Regulatory Specialist, at (412) 395-7575 or
Michael.M.Fodse@usace.army.mil.

Sincerely,

f' ~' ~?.,.-/

~~~ ~
.~ /~,..

. ` Jc~i'rey . ~~aPP
Associate Director
Office of Environmental Programs
US EPA, Region 3

~f-~~̂

~'~Scott A. Hans
Chief, Regulatory Branch
Pittsburgh District
US Army Corps of Engineers

Enclosures

CF:
Mr. Karl Gross
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection
Northwest Regional Office
230 Chestnut Street
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I~t THE UI`TITED STATES DISTRICT COURTr-

"•-- - FAR THE WESTERN DISTRICT 0~ PENIYSYLV`AI~tIA
~.

7

~'IVITED STATES QF A~I~RI~A,

Plaintiff,

V.

ROB$RT BRACE and RO$ERT B~A.CE
FARMS, INC., a Pennsylvania
C~rporatian,

Defendants.

Civil Ac#ion I~io. 90-229
brie

CERT~FiFD FROM THE RE~QRD

~,VI~E~EAS Plaintiff Lrnited States of America, in its ~ozr~plaint, a}leg~d mat

Defendants c "tted violations of the Clean Water Act ("CWA"j, including the

,~a
~ `r~i~ted discharge of pollutants by dredging, filling, beveling, and draining o£ waters

• of the United States, specif :ails a 1ve~Iands of approximately ~0 ages that is adjacent to

E.fk Creek, and~Plaintiffsc5~lght in,Junctiv~ belief and civil ge~aities;

~VHEREt1.S €fie United States District Court fo; the ~Vestern L~istret cf

Pennsylvania after crial dismissed xhe Ceinplaint on December 22, 1993, holding that

Defendants` acrvities were exempt from p~rmztting requirements under S~ct~on ~~J4 of

tE~~e ~~I.~;

t7~(~1-~ER~A~ the Third Circuit ~'ourt ~€ ~~eals, o~ 1'~da fe~ber 22, 1944, revered

tk~e Dtsttict ~~i~.~~ ~n~ r,~l~d t~.at Defe~d~n~s are liable fir the asserted viQlatiQns anC

EJCN~B~T ~ ~~ ,~~J
~{ ~,, ~J~~893
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.~~...~.i~V eitP m~Y??t- ~n ~,L;~• 1;,115tS'IC~ ~'•L:~ fL~t f'T.y~!3~ ~?1e3~'J?'~o ~~~ tha i initari Ca~r~cil`~ i

5~,:~e~ne C~c~~' d~:e~ Defe~:dan~s' pet:tta~r Fir writ ~f certior~~~i; ar.~

WI-AREAS tie parties ha~.ve agreed t~ this ~rsen~ i~ec ree;

NO~1, THEREFORE, it ~s ~.ersby ORD~3~EI3, :~DJUDCEI3, and .DECREED that:

~'INI)II~GS

1 his ~~rt ~~s jam:-sd~~on ~r~er fits ~e~i~n pc~rs~a~i ~o C IA S~ctio~ 3~9,

33 U.S.C. §i319, aid 28 U.S.C. §§i331, ~3~#5, and 1355.

2. This Consent Decree is fair, r~ea~on~ble, in the pjzbli~ interest, and in

accordance with the ~~lA.

3. Defendants, t~sir aftcers, d~ractr~rs, agents, ~ev-va~ts, ernglQ3~~:,s,

successors, assigns, ~~d t~osa iii acti~je ~a~.cert ter particin~tion Frith them are en~~inec!

~ermanentiy fr~~ discharging a~Zy ~l~uta~zts ~inalud?.rsg dredged t~~ fii~ m~ateriat) into tie

approximately 3~ acre.w~tlar~d site ~epict~d an Atta~hrs~~st A, uni~ss such discharge is in

c~a~p,iance wi~'~ t$z CWA_.

~~~~~
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4 -~}efendants will perfozm restoration i~ accordance wri~'t the wetlands

restflra~ion plan, wt~ic~ is attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof

5. Wit~~in thirty days after the entry of this Consent Decree, Defendan#s ~vii1

pay a civil genaIty of $1 t3,DOG by cashier's ar certified r~eck ~pa~able t~ the Treasurer of

t1~e United States and dei'svered to David l~. Thompson ~~"the U. S. Department ~f

Justice. I:~sazd pay~en~ is not mate within said period, th~t~ interest wiil be charged in

accordance with the statuta~y judgment interest rats, as provided in 2~ d.J.S,C, § 1961,

from the titrte paysrtent is due un~i[ the time payment is made,

ti ;h'itt~in thirty days aver the entry• o€this Censea~t Dscree, Defe~a~anis ~vili

record this Consent I~e~ree in the applic~hle Iand recerds office.

~` Until all requ~rerr~ents in paragraphs ~, 5, end 6 have ~eeu perf~~rn~d and at

i t thi~.y days prior Co any progased transfer ~r any in#erest in ar:y part ai the property

af~'eeted by thrs Consent Decree, Defendants will provide a true eo~ry of tfais Consent

Decree t~ ar<y pr~p~ssd tra~~sferee axed sir€~~ita~~eq~asiy ~itl no~i~ the C~ c~~ed States of any

pr~pased transfer. A transfer o~interest i~ t~Ze said pra~~rfy w~.lI not~retieve Defa~~an~

~~ any r~~c~n~i~il~*y zn t~iis ~~~se~t I?e~r~~, ur;~~s x.~s~ ?.J~~ited States, D~~'~~zrt~, and t~~

uarsserpe wee t~ allov~~ ~18 t'~'diiS~~i'PP ~~J ~;~;ts~t~ st?~II CCS~!~~13I~'3t~lty.
~~~~



`? Each taarty wits bear sts own expenses anti ~.os~~s to ~~e iirr~e of the en~wy Qf

phis Car~sent~ecree, Thereafter, if Deferdanfs ~faii to perfocm~ ar~y requirem~ntin

paragraph 4, 5, end ~, hen, ur n receipt of written n~ati~e ~f such fail~.~re from Pia.intiff,

7efendants,wi~ll pay a stipulated penal of $250 fc~r each dad of fazlu~e, by cashier's ar

certif ~d cheek payable to the Treasurer of the United States aa~si si~iiv~red to David ~i

Thompson ~f~e U. S. Department ~fJustice. ~~di~i~~ally, D~f~r~~an~s v~ili ~e

respansibte for a~-~y expenses and co~t~ incurred ~y tiie ~,T~ed S~.ates i:~ ~~.f~zc~ng this

Cflnse~~ Decrt~.

9 In addition tc~ any ot~.er 1ega1 at~~rity, representatives o~ the U~;~ed 5tat~s

vii? have tine authar~ty Por a period of eighteen ~l $ j months after the entry of ~.is C~r~s~rit

Decree, at r~st~~aable ~i ~~ and wig p apex ~~r~ttf~catit~r3, to enter upon ~e propuriy

a~eeted by this C~nssnt decree nor t~~ p~pos~s ~fm~nit~~ng aT~d ~~~:z~ir~g

CfllT1~3I1.~i1CC w7~~3 ~~3I5 C( I'138TfC Degree,

l~. T~~s Consent Decry c~~stit~tes a ct~m~tet~ seltlw~ent of ark and a1' ela ors

~y a~~ ~f ~~e pa• +'es that arse frc~rc~ the ~nr~inlain~ t~~~.g~ ~e da1~ of~he try ~f this

~ons~nt Decree. 'i'h~ U:zited States does ~oz waive arty ~g[~~.s or remedies av~~;abbe to it

Cyr any violations by Defe~~~ s o.F~aws, regul~.tia~s, r~~I~s, ~s~ ~e i~ ot~<~r ~iian the

~'r~?~$L~OfiS 4w:G4~"4(~ 3I3 ~2C ~'l1~".IA7i8if1~9 3~~ i:1?5 ~G~.S=~~ v2G~:. uCl~'S x^~=>~ ivs>v`.:: ~'~fony9~T-~;

i ~P.S~tQtlS<G~~I ` ~C ~'t}ii2~~zr' ̀ :{;'~'r ~.zj' ~~.,Q.:...~., 8 :tip, c~.~,~ :~G~ ~3'~TS, r~~ ~.3ClilTtS~ P3~f'S, ~.[1ti

~~*,r~~~s, e,~cep~. tha~ this ~ons~nt I~e~~ee pr~ti`id~s ~,~ nwcessa~ fe~er~ a~~'~~ri ~ *~

s l~^~~nt pa~agz'a~-S ~. '~L1S~41~.' iS ilia Tk~I L'SI`~".'~f. `d~;Iy ~5~~'1>~ a;r r~m~~3:~.s a4°azla~ale t~

E.J ~J'J ~'.i
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therz under any app,icable law against the Plaintiff which may arise after the date of the

en~~ of this consent Decrec.

1 I . Defendants consent to the entry of this Consent Decree without further

notice The parties acknowledge that after the lodging and before the entry of t3~is

Consent Decree, final approval by ~e United States is subject t~ the requirements of 28

C.F.Q. §5fl.7, w~iich provides fir public notice and comment. The I,T:ufied States r~er4es

the right to .withhold or withcfra~rr its cr~nsent to the entry of this Cflnsent Decrcc based

upon such public comm~at_

1.2. Upon approval ar_d entry by this G~,~t, this Cor~ent Decree tivilt have the

effe~t.an~, foxce of a fuzal j~dgm~nt. This Court-will retain. Jurisdiction over this action

fog the purposes of enforcing, interpre#ing, and rn~difying this ConseIIt Decree. The

United States reserves all legal and equitable remedies available io enf~r~e the provisions

Qf this CQ~se~t Decree, Any stipulated mt~dification ~f this C~sent Decree must ~e ix~

waiting, szgned by the parties, and approved by this Court.

~~?t39?
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DATED; .~,~~ Z3 ;~4f~

.1

,~ ~

U?~ti't~i~ ST ~~ DISTR,I -NDGE

~ ~~
LOiS J, SC' FER
Asszstan# Attorney C~ene~l
Environment &Natural ~esource~ Di~i.sion

~y: ~iJ WV`. f ' l ~ r y

DAViI~ A~. THL}~vl~'Si~l'~i, 'I` 1 Attorne;~

ET. 5. Department of J~sticx
£nvirfl~msrt# & Na#ural Resources I}ivision

Environmental Defense ~ectiQn

Room 7124
4~ashin~to~ D. C. 2t753~
Talep~Qr~e:.~202) 514-26 ~ 7

~ttom~ys fir the United ~~es

~A~'EI3. z S ! ~f ~ E~ ~~

B~,xhar~an I~gvrscll ~r~'fess~on3. ~'o~r~,ticn

Ore Oxford ~`sn~e
34 i Crran~t StrAet, 20th Ft~cr

Pit~sburo3~, F.~ 15219-14 i C
TP}Ppt~~nP- f~ 121 5~2-1~~5

Ai'torneys for Defendaa~s

F
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WetZanda Res~oz~ation Flea

The primary objective of this plan is to restore the
aydrologi-c regime to the U-si~~aped, approximately 30=acrs wetlands
adjacent to~Elk Cr~~k. In order to restore the h~droZog~r to the
area] the drainage the system curre:~tly located in .the we_lands
is to b~ ~.isabled, surface ditches £i11~3 in, and a.ch~ck dace
constructed, 'the series of tasks to he performed to sufficiently
disable the drainage system are as foll.ovus;

1. Excavation of trenches • r~cnova~ of drai.naae t~bincr

(a? Excavate a set of two parallel trenches to a dep~h of
five (5) feet at each ~f tie three following Iacations,
as depic~ed on the map a~tachad as Attachment A:

(1} the first $et shall ~ located parallel t~ the
western side of LIk Creak f►rarksti as °Set Z° an
Attachment A);

t2} the seccnd set shah. he i~cat~d parallel to tie
sciuthern silo of t~.e waterway r~ieren~ed a4
"unnamed tribu~a~t A" marked as "Sep 2'° an
Attachment A);'and

tat tha third set shall b
northern side of Che
urrr~ataed tributary B ='
Attachment A),

e iaca~ted para11s1 t~ the
wa~srway .referenced as

marked as "Set 3'= on

for a total of six trenches.

(b) The first tren~~ ire each set shall. be laca~erl at a
die~ance o£ twenty five t25) feet ~r~m the bank of the
reiereacs3 watez~vay; she szcand tYen~h in each smt
shall be located at ~a distance of fifty (5Q) feat from
t~s first ~rvnah (a .total of seventy five (75) faet
from the bank of the waterway).

(~; The ~trerxchzs shah, be excavated a~ a length necessary
to intercept the drainage tomes located in the
we~2ands. During Che course of excavation of the
trenches, ea~.h time a drainage ~ub~ is izttesce~ted, a
twenty five (25} foot length of the drainage tube shall
be rernovsd. Upon re*ara~aZ of aZ1 in~¢rcepted drain
tile, the area shall be inspected by EPA {or its
representiative). Following the ~n~ectior~ and apgro~a7.
oP the wflrk b~ ~:Pk i~r a.ts rspresen~a~isre) , the
~rench~s shall. b? fil~.ed zri w3.th the soil :had was
exca~a~ted from them ar~~ t~zs t3.le dispose3 of p~vp~rly.

2. ~~1 In ~•+~~ Surface ~itch~=

TY~~e t~u~ s~r~a~e ditc~~.es t~a~, r:~r~ in a s~ut~i=~~sCer].tf

.:~`

~~%~~~~
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~iire~tion into rznn~,m~d tributar~~ B, as in~3ica~ed ors ~tt3c.~~e*~t ~,
shall b~ filies~ i~ beginning at tha mouth fnr a distance of at
least ti~~tty Pive (25) ~ee~,

3. Ir~sta~l Chag~c Dam

~ check d~ sha13 be installed in unnamed ~ibutary A at tie
location in~3ica~ed an. Attachment A. Thzs dam shall b~ one anti
one-half (1 1~2) ~ ieet high, faun (4~ fe.e't long, anc~ as wider as
the tributary bo~tcm, The darn shall be cons~.z u~ted of can~xete,
gabions, os compacted rock,

?,~.1 work straZl be co~apl~t~c3,. if ~~asi.bla, drit~in ninety rgQ;
days ~ftsr sittry of ~3~ Cvns~nt Izecree and, i.~ ara~ e3r~t, ao
lz~ter than or,~. yoar ~g~er entxy of txs.is consent Decree.• AZ1
rac,~xired. State and 3.ocai permits must b~ received prig• t~
pesfaz~i:zsq an~r of the ah~~ze wank. '~'lze site ~i13. be iir~p~ctad at
the ca~a3.etian of ~~ t~encl~ wank and ag~i:in at ~da.~ ~.ozag.Zeti~r~ o€
#.he restora~i~az~ wo:l~,

- --



Vv
,.
..
 .
 •.
. 

,.
.

.'
~ 

..
..
.-
 
r
~
 

~.

t ~t; +
' ~r

•
~
~

~
.
 F t'
`'
~

~+

_ 
~ 

-'
s 

{

i
,
r

\
,
'
,
 N

'
 

;
~
~
~
 h

~
~
 ~
 

~ 
~

r c~
G'
~

d 
~~

~ ~

~
~
~
t
.

~
~

~
►

~

'
~
;
 v

4 
,
~

~
; ~
-
 t

Pi
t 
1
0

~
 
f

~
+
'
~

f

t

l
l
~
n
a
r
n
e
 ~

~T
~.

; b
,,
~.
a"
~l

~e~
. ~
 

''
--
~.

~'
° 

'~
'r

,R
.h

e,
In

QS
 

u~
nn
oa
n~
r~
d

~
~
~
~
~
~



- -
 

-
-

'~
:. t
 

~

~
~
 

~ 
y
,
 

,
.
 

i 
._
 

`
3

'
.

~
1

i
M1

~.
.

i
~

~
~
 
.

~
4

,
4
 f
'
 

..
 ̀
`

I
 d
~

1'
in

:n
. 
11
 ~
'

`~
11
 i
Ny

i(
rt

.1
 t
• '
q
 t 
p
C

~~

~
.

Y
'

n
a
u
u
 f~

v
A?

~S
M'

Td
AM

1~
7-

0~
7 
Mf

I

.
_
~
 ~
~

"
"
 

-. 
.,

 a
t
e
,.
»S
 
'
 

~
 
f

Y~
~

P
e
t
r
e
l
 l
FF
i 

'q

N
f
l
 I
~E

 
Th

ie
 n
~A
P 
w
a
s
 r
ur
ti
pi
lx
d 
h
.
A
n
 v
a
i
i
W
s
 ~
,o
tm
t+
s.
 t
o 
i[
Hi
tI
JP

F
r
M
 (
'
n
u
n
A
 ~

'~
,c
 j
~a

rc
ei

cl
. 
VY
et
wx
~d
 m
k
~
n
r
~
l
b
n
 {
N
M
b
n
'
T
I
 W
e
l
N
u
a
i

In
ve
nW
ry
).
 !
'A
t>
c+
T 
(r
op
ds
j.
 e

tr
p;

~r
ns

 {
P
A
O
E
i
s
)
,
 a
m
d
 ~
~
D
6
 Y
~d
:T
ti
10

pr
~~
~a
i 
~t
~o
lo
u~
:~
nt
ry
 (
i
'
A
M
A
F
~

A
N
 ~
9
I
F
 1
4
 A
Ff

ll
f~

`t
iY

~ 
g
P
V
/
(
i
Y
j
f
T
~
A
 '
~
.
t
l
 
e
h
e
t
:
S
7
n
d
 f
~f

 ~
+4

Bt
S 
k
v
.
~
 

.

e
n
p
i
n
e
e
r
a
w
 
hr

nu
id

ar
y.

 I
x
r
i
i
d
i
n
p
.
l
~
m
e
N
M
~
 ~
M 
A
~
d
p
n
 

.

3
~

(
 

~
 

Z
~.

 
_a
:

F
{
~
~
 

~

2

~.
 

r~
•T
Ji
A 
~T
74
 

yv
p 

--

i 
- 

~ 
~~

7.
 

Y

~~'
`

R
t
~
B
E
R
T
 B
R
A
G
 ~
 S
O
N
S
,
 I
N
C

W
a
~
x
t
m
d
 8
 M
c
K
e
a
n
 T
ow
ir
oh
fp
e.
 E
ri

e 
Co

u~
ri

y.
 P
A

E
N
C
L
~
S
U
R
E
1

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 
Co

ns
en

t 
De
cr
ee
 A
re

a
S
#
r
e
a
m
s
 b
y 
P
A
L
I
E
P
 (
1
9
9
8
)
 (r
ed

 "
X"

)
s
h
o
w
s
 a
re

as
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
)

fi
~ 
We
tl
an
d 
S
a
m
p
l
e
 P
oi
nt
s

S
t
r
e
a
m
s
 (C
ur
ns
nt
)

M
I
I
f
l
I
M
C
1
E
C
1
5
V
~
1
1
1
A
r
o
1
l
r
l
M
.
n
i
.
A
.
y
,
 N
7
4
 A
n
a
 M
1
v
 f
M

I
 

-
 

~
~
J
l
 

n
.
 0
1
7
-
p
~
8
.
)
a
n
~
.
v
 

..

t
a
d
 

r 
Y
'
l
~
 
/
7
 

.;
 

~ 
A

~M
 

~
M4

.,
 

;.
 
~
 

f
~
.
w
 

f~
 

~
 

(
~
J
'
 

j
+
.
 

'
 

.
"
 _ 

7 7

9 
,
~
 

y
 

'
~

a 
.
~
 

~ 
f
 

t
: 

".
 

~ 
4

~ 
st.

.
,
~
 

a

{
.~

5~
 

~7
M„
f'
 

"
_
e
w
e
:
 

y
 
s
-
t
 

r.
 M

+
-s
.
.
 

F.
 

:r
g 
s

Ii
~ 

~1
y
 ~'

 
_ 

~
{
~
~
 

~ 
~f

 5
,i

--
 -

.. 
_ 

_ 
;,

~
~;,

,

,
~
~
 r
s

p
 

Ny

t
 

~
. r

4̀
„~

 ~
~
 .

..

~
 

~ "
a 

__


